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THE LIVEZEY FAMILY

I
THE ANCESTRY OF THOMAS LIVEZEY

OriciIN OF THE NAME

Livezey is a variant form of the older English family name Livesey.
The substitution of a z for the older s was first made by Thomas
Livezey, the ancestor of the American family, presumably after his
arrival in Pennsylvania. The changed spelling was adopted by his
descendants, and is believed to be pecuhar to them.?

Livesey became established in English usage before the date of
written tecords as the name of a manor in Blackburn Hundred,
Iancashire. The name of this manor first occurs in these records in
the year 1220 A. D., but it was one of the twenty-eight manors which
composed Blackburn Hundred when the Domesday survey was made,
150 years before, and there is reason to believe that it existed long
before the Norman conquest. Unfortunately, the Domesday Book
does not give the names of these twenty-eight manors, nor the
names of the free-holders (liberi) who owned them.

British writers have made various attempts to determine the deriva-
tion of the place name Livesey. The most recent and authoritative®
believe that the word is composed of two elements, connected by the
letter 5. The first element is supposed to be a corruption of the Saxon
personal name Leof, and the ey either Old English eg (lowland or
island) or haege (an enclosure, a dwelling place). Livesey, then,
means either “Leof’s lowlands” or “Leof’s dwelling place.” It is
significant, perhaps, that the oldest known habitation of the Livesey
family stands on low ground, near the River Darwen.?

tA more detailed discussion of, variant forms of the name will be found on pages 21 and 22,

sWyld & Hurse, also Prof. Eilért Eckwall; The Place Nomes of Lancashire.

83 radically different derivation of the mame was suggested by Percival Lucas, Esq., a
teputable genealogist.of London, England, io a survey made for the Livezey Assoclation in
1911. The Saron Chronicie states that in-1002 A. D., a Saxon nebleman, Aeldorman (Earl)
Leqfei, was the personal emissaty of King Ethelred in negotiations with a Dapish fleet pre-

aring to ravage the coast of England. Furthermore, the Lancostra Pipe Roll for 24 Henry
gl (1177-8), records the fine of 1 mark paid by Elya filio Lefsi (Elya, son of Lefsi) for
bugting in the king's forest. The conmtext shows that Elya must have lived in or mear the

disgrict called"Livesey. o . ; i . B .
inee sither Lenfel or Lefsi eould easily be eorrupted into Livesey, and neither nime is
found. in contemporary records, of _other parts of ;-Znailg‘gd., Mr, Lucas suspected that the
Lenfsiand his descendants héld the manot it*Saxon times, and gave their name to it
Tnfortagately, this interesting theory is not in accord with other known facts.
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THE LIVEZEY FAMILY

Livesey Manor

Livesey Manor, in modern times known as Livesey Township,
was a body of land containing slightly more than 2000 acres, and
shaped like an irregular diamond, which lay some 314 miles south-
west of the medizval village of Blackburn. The north-east corner
of the township 1s now incorporated into the limits of the modern city.

The central and eastern portions of the township form a lofty
ridge, which slopes abruptly northward toward the River Darwen,
the northern boundary of the township, and westward toward the
Roddlesworth, a smaller stream which forms the western boundary,
and empties 1nto the Darwen at the north-west corner.

In ancient times the boggy land along the two streams grew a thick,
mos-y turf called turbary, which was in local demand for thatching
cottages and other small buildings. The intermediate lowlands and
the lower slopes of the ridge were under cultivation. The higher

slopes vielded a low grade of coal, giving the name Bunker Hill to
the ridge itself.

At present, the higher portions of the township are considered fit .

only for pasturage, and are owned by the descendants of the two
brothers who purchased the manor from Ralph Bell Livesey, shortly
after 1800. The lower-lying portions of the township are largely
industrialized, and contain at least a dozen large cotton mills, as well

as other enterprises. It is in this part of the township that Livesey
Old Hall stands.

THE Liveseys oF LIvESEY?!

The first recorded use of Livesey as the name of a person is found
in a Latin deed dated 4 Henry III (1220 A. D.), by which a certain
Galfred de Levesaye transferred to his son Hughe “one messuage
and certain crofts (small, enclosed fields) called Estcroft and West-
croft at Greene Toccholes in the vill* of Levesaye.” This deed was
witnessed by Henry and Adam de Levesaye, described as Galfred’s
brothers,

It is believed that the father of these three brothers was Wzlham,
a younger son of Adam de Bury, an important landowner in this
part of Lancashire. His principal holdings were near Preston, but
he was also official lord of Livesey Manor, which he held in thegnage
of the Earls of Lincoln, the Norman over-lords of this section of
Lancashire. The ancestry of the de Burys, and the-date of their

"Most of the material in the next three pages bas been adapted from Abrams Histo
Blackburn; Croston’s edition of Baines’ Hmmznof the Count ‘y Pc!aime aaé Dachy of Lao
caster;l and the ¥ictoria’ "History of Enaglond, Lancdshire, Vofs, VI and VII.

urder one ﬁaaeﬂklp

2Vill was.a feudal tefm used ¢ designate a !arge TARGT OF 2 mhef of small mmagors -

3
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8 THE LIVEZEY FAMILY

That is, the trefoils in the crest were disallowed, and the paw was
changed to a gamb (the fore-leg, broken off just below the middle

.joint ; somewhat longer than a paw).

BraNcHES oF LiVESEY OF LIVESEY

There is but one place in England named Livesey, and no persons
of that name are found in the early records of any part of the
country except the immediate vicinity of Blackburn. It seems not
unreasomable to assume, therefore, that the entire Livesey family
originated-in Livesey township. It is probable even that their com-
mon ancestors were the de Livesey family whose history has been
sketched in preceding pages. As official lords of the manor, they
would probably have prevented others from assuming their own name
during the period when family names were being adopted in England.

Later records show a gradually expanding circle of settlement, and
by the middle of the 16th century, when parish registers were first
set up, families named Livesey were found scattered generally
throughout central and southern Lancashire, and in occasional com-
munities of the neighboring county of Chester. It would be beside
the purpose of this book to attempt to give their history. A few of
themn can be traced back to the manorial family, but in most cases
the intermediate records have been lost. Of the known branches,
three attained sufficient prominence to deserve mention here.

Edward Livesey, a vounger son of the period 1425-1450, married
a member of the noble house of Nevil and his descendants became
important personages in British aristocracy. His great-grandson,

Sir Michael Livesey of Eastchurch, Kent, was made a baronet in

1627 and assumed the arms of Livesey of Livesey.! During the

Cromwellian revolution Sir Michael sided with Parliament and was

one of the judges who pronounced the death sentence on Charles 1.

After the Restoration he was attainted of treason and the baronetcy

was extinguished. In the meantime, Sir Michael had fled to Holfand

with his son Gabriel, who married and had a son Robert. Robert
married a Dutch girl and emigrated with her to America. They
settled near Hackensack, N@v Jersey, where Robert’s name appears

in the records of Bergen county shortly after 1700.2

Livesey of Sutton, Lancashire, was another younger branch which:
bore the Livesey arms, but with an added border of azure. George,

1A photographic reproduction of the death warrast of Charlea’' 1, showlng the signature.
ard geal of Sir_Michael, 13 <hown at page Jod of Hilaire l}eilec's Clarles the First Ring of
Ewnplond, §: B. Lippincort Co., 1933.- sl G S ; & o

"This stateme=nt, while not deronstrated by dosumentary

L

the ihvestigationa of the late Reginald Livesey, Esq. of Smuﬂg:ln ‘Hall, %émﬂ?gﬁgf Enshﬂ!z

e — A
.
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ANCESTRY OF THOMAS LIVEZEY 9

the first of this line registered with the College of Arms, died in
1614. It is possible, however, that the ancestor of this branch was a
son of the marriage of Henry de Livesey and Cecily de Sutton in
the first half of the 14th century. This family were Royalists dur-
ing the Civil War, and one of George’s sons died on the battlefield
for King Charles.

The second Ralph Livesey of Livesey had a younger brother
\William, who became a prominent barrister in London. William’s
son John entered the army and rose to the rank of Major General.
He was Governor of Jamaica in 1704. After his retirement, he pur-
chased Hinwick Hall, Bedfordshire, which he rémodeled to resemble
Livesey Hall. His crest bore three trefoils.

Livesey is a fairly common name in England at the present time,
and is still most frequently met in Lancashire. Probably the best-
known man of the name in modern times was James Livesey, born
in humble circumstances at Preston, Lancashire in 1795, who
organized the total abstinence movement in England in 1832. In his
honor, the British Temperance Union recently celebrated its cen-
tenary in Preston. His grandson, Sir William Livesey of Preston,
has been entrusted with important affairs of state by King George.

IMMEDIATE ANCESTRY OF THOMAS LivezEy oF NortoN

The first organized attempt to record vital statistics in England was
made in 1538 by a royal edict of Henry VIII which required the
registry of all births, marriages and deaths in each parish. As has
already been stated, the entries in these registers show that family
groups with the name Livesey were scattered widely throughout
Lancashire and Cheshire during the latter half of the 16th century.
One such group had its home in Runcorn Parish, Cheshire, and it
was from this group that came the Thomas Livezey of Norton,
Cheshire, who emigrated to Pennsylvania and became the ancestor of
the American family. _

The date at which this family appeared in Runcorn Parish, and
the place from which they came are still unknown and can be dis-
covered, if at all, only by a further search of the unpublished records
of southern Lancashire and northern Cheshire. Runcorn is but 15
miles from Chester, where a certain John Livesey established a
locally famous family of inn-keepers before 1600,-and but little
further from Liverpool, where Richard Livesey became-the first of
an equally well-known family of mariners at about the same time.
This propinquity, together with a marked simiilarity of male Christian

For personal use onl




10 THE LIVEZEY FAMILY

names, make it seem probable that the three families were rather
closely related.?

The Runcorn register was set up in 1558, and the Livesey entries
began 16 years later with the births of three daughters:?

1574 Alicia Levesley bapt. erat xviii Aprilis
1590 Jana Lyvesley bapt.erat  xii  Februarii
1591 Margareta Levesley bapt.erat  xviii Novembris

Next in order come a series of burials:

1386 Alicia Leevesley sepult. erat  1ii Feb.

1390 Jana Livesley sepult. erat xxi  Februarii
1590 J.. Levesley sepult. erat vii  Maicii
1591 Elizabetha Levesley sepult.erat xi Maii

1596 Thomas Livesley sepult. erat xxiii Septembris

While it is manifestly impossible to construct an accurate pedigree
from these isolated entries, it seems probable that Alice and jane
died in childhood. Margaret married Thomas Sankey of Keakquick,
Cheshire, at Runcorn Church _Jux}e 15, 1617, and had a daughter
named Ellin,

The three remaining entries probably record the deaths of aduits.
“]" followed by two illegible letters, may stand for “Joh” the
Latin abbreviation for John. In all likelihood, either John or Thomas

was the father of the three girls; Elizabeth may have been their
mother.

1Richard Livesey of Liverpcol bad a som pamed Jorathan, and this was zlso the name
which Thomas Livezeyr of Nurton gawe to his alder son. Theg are the only Jonathan
Liveseys met with in Fnglish records; it is mot likely that this was a coincidence.

Establishment of this connmection woold also furnish evidence of the descent of the
Runcurn tamiiv irom: Liveser oi Livesey. John Livesey of Chester used -the Livesey
arms and the Talor crest as his szal, and named his tavern “The Sign of the Talbott.”

Two attempts have been made by qualified genealogists to establish these connections.
Percival Lucas, already menticned oa a preceding page, surmised that Thomas Livezey of
Norton was identical with a grandson of John Livesey of Chester, also named Thomas, He
was unable to discover proof of this identity, Bowever, and advanced his theory only as

2 suggrestion. .

Some ten years ago. the late Alfred R, g;;&tke of Pbﬂade‘l‘phia {zee 6-33) became com-

vinced that Jobn Livesey of Chester, Richard Livesey of Live I, and the father of
Thomas Livézey of Norton, also mamed Thomas, were brathers. ey were, he assumed,

sons of John Livesey of Bury, Lancashive, a ¥ brother of Richard Livesey of Livasey.
To complete his theary, it became necessary to make. the further assumption t-the elder
Thaomas Livesey moved from Bury to Norton, Cheshire about 1640. .

Both these theories were formulated withont -supporting decumentary fmdme, and the
entries discovered in the Runcorn rvegister bave made both uatemable. It | not Be out
of plice to add that the Thomas Livesey selécted by Mr. Justice as the iather af aur
American ancestor was not the son of John Livesey of Bury (Lanc, Far. Reg. Soe. Vol. 5§,
?: 2uS) and the latter was not a brother of Richard Livesey, the contemporary lord of

ivesey (Dugdale’s Visitation of Lancashire, p. 157; Abram's History of Blackbuys, p. $67;
Croston-Baines' History of Lancaster, Vol IV, p. 37}, .~ Do _ 7

“The Editor ventures to sufgest a third possibility, subject.to the resulés of further gesearch,
Rickard Livesey of Livesey (1325-1391) had a son Thomas whose life h!ﬁlﬁfg is unknown.
le may have been the Thomas Livesley who died .in-Runcarn, Cheshire in-1595, The first
John Livesey of Chester may have been the younger brothér of James Livesey of Livesey. If
these two assumptions are correct, Thomas Livezey the Quaker emigrant was a3 great-
grandson of Richard Livesey just mentioned, and a cousin of the Chester family,

A transcript of these entries, certified by Canon H. N. Perrin, M. A., Vicar ¢f Ruscorn,

is in the Editor’s possession,




ANCESTRY OF THOMAS LIVEZEY 11

Later entries show that there were also two sons, John and

Thomas, both of whom lived in the village of Norton. The omission
of their names from the register may have been deliberate. For
many years after the establishment of parish registers, the common
people of England regarded them with great suspicion and were
tant to register the names of their children, and particularly
of th&r sons. Then, as now, government was constantly seeking
new sBurces of revenue, and there was a wide-spread fear that the
registry of vital statistics was the prelude to some new form of tax-
ation.

John Livesey had a son of the same name, who was born in Feb-
ruary 1610, and- who died the following month. His wife, whose
name is not given, died four years later. He apparently married a
second wife named Alice, and both she and her husband died in
August 1627.

Thomas, the other son, was the father of our American ancestor.
He married Anne Garratt at Runcorn Church Aug. 9, 1617 and died
at Norton Apr. 28, 1628, being buried in Runcorn churchyard the
same day. His widow married Thomas Browne of Frodsham, Che-
shire, at Frodsham Church on Nov. 6th of the same year.!

Thomas died intestate, but an inventory of his property is pre-
served in the files of the Probate Court in Chester.? This document
contains a list of his possessions, with their valuation and the names
of the five “praysers,” an itemized statement of sums due him at
death, and a similar list of sums owed to others. The principal items
of personal property were: '

Item: In Brasse £2- 80
In Pewter - 0-0

In Chistes 1-10-0

- In Apparell 2- 60

Among the sums due the deceased was an item of 4sh. for wheat,
indicating that Thomas was probably a farmer. Since there is no
mention of farming implements or real estate, it is assumed-that he
was a hushandman or tenant farmer, and not a free-holder. Pos-
sibly the sum of 2sh. due Sir Richard Brooke, Knight, indicates the
name of his landlord.

Thomas’ debts totaled a larger sum than his credits plus the
appraised value of his property, the largest single item being £10 due
Ellin Sankey, the daughter of his sister Margaret.

Recarded in the Frodsham register, also in AMarriage Licenscs Granted in the Digcese
ef Chester, Part U1, p. 139 (Lanc, & Ches. Rec. Sce. Vol. LVID).

Recorded in Lanc, & Ches. Rec, Soc, Vol. IV, p. 139 as the inventory of Thomas
Linesley of Worton, but an inspection of the original document reveals that this should
tead “Thomas Livesley of Norton.” An abstraét is in the Editor's posseasion.
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THOMAS LIVEZEY AND HIS DESCENDANTS

First GENERATION

1-1 THOMAS LIVEZEY, only known child of Thomas Livesey
and Anne Garratt, of Norton, Runcorn Parish, Cheshire, England,
was- baptized at Runcorn Church Nov. 18, 1627, about five months
before his father's death. His mother’s new home, after her remar-
riage, was only a few miles from Norton, so Thomas’ youth was
probably spent in the neighborhood of his birthplace.

He married early in life and his first child, the daughter Ann,
was baptized at Runcorn Church Sept. 29, 1647. His marriage is
not recorded in the Runcorn register, and probably took place in
another parish. His wife's first name was Sarah, but her maiden
name has not been found. A second daughter, Margaret, was born
of this marriage, but the date is not recorded. Probably she came
after the break with the Church of England, and before the Cheshire
Monthly Meeting of Friends began to keep records. Sarah died
during 3 mo. 1655 ; the exact date was not recorded.

Thomas became an early convert to Quakerism, and was one of
the first persons in Cheshire to suffer persecution for his belief. In
1653 for refusing to take oath, he “had a Cow taken from him
worth 50sh. and for the same Cause suffer'd six Weeks and five
Days Imprisonment.’? '

Thomas’ marriage to his second wife Ellen was by Friends’ cere-
mony, and was solemnized during the year 1665. It was not recorded,
however, and neither the exact date nor Ellen’s last name are known.
He and other Quakers of Runcorn Parish were brought before the
Consistory Court at Chester on Dec. 22nd of that year “for mot
being marryed according to the Canons and Laws Ecclesiastical.”™
Thomas was fined 2sh. for this offense. Ellen is believed to have been
buried 6 mo. 9, 1668.*

A special tax on hearths was levied in Runcorn Parish in the years
1673 and 1674. Thomas Livezey was assesséd for one fireplace on
each occasion.® He was a husbandman or tenant farmer, as his father

;;S’sﬁm'abl. of she People Colled Qauke;? blyu’csgph Besse, London; 1733,

Fricads' Histovical Journal-English, 'V

! . . 28, B,
-, SRecorded by the Cheshire Monthly Mecting as Fina Livesleys” probably a mistake oa the

art of the réconder, ‘ . s g
?‘A?ﬁltﬁfﬂ,,,f.u;ﬁce. in his_ manuscript bistory of the Livesey family, states that Thomas

as assessed for § hearths in the Chester Hearth Tax of 1664. He has confused Thomas

_'i‘exei{,ség!':}ﬁarm with Themas Livesey of Chester, 3 man of much greater means,

j

1

o ke s i

al use only



THE LIVEZEY RAMILY
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had. |been before him, and. the foregoing reference ighost that he
lived in a humble: cottage.. 2"

There is no further record untll 1682 On March anfand 3rd of
that |year,-Thomas purchased from Penn’s land agents in England
a tract of 250 ucres, to be laid .outrand surveyed for him in the

rince of Pcnnsyhama. The pru:e paid for the land wap £5, Ssh,,
or about ten cents an acre?

The exact date of Thomas’ arrival in Phxladelphna has not- been’
ascertained, but it was sometime between March 3rd, 1682 and
Jan, Hth, 1683. On the latter. date, he was ong of 18 grand jurors -
cho%en for the first court held in Phﬂadelphla’ Since neither his
nanje nor that of his son Jonathan appear in the passenger list of
any of the ships that entered the port of Philadelphia that year,’ it
is pbssible that they did not sail directly to that port. The{r relatwes
jonbthan and Gilbert Livesey were at that time masters' of Vessels
making regular runs between Liverpool and Virgini and they ma}‘
have taken passage on one of these shﬁ)s aﬂd made ‘fiqeu' {vay up thel
coast to Philadelphia.

s was customary, Thomas received a lot in the clty of: Ph:la-
'del}hm as‘a bonus for purchasing land in the Colqny I'These cnty
lots were allotted according to the acreage-purchased the Iarge§t ldnd-r

fers receiving the choicest lots, The most desired .location ‘was

ng the water. ar High Street,:now the cqrner*of Ma}'ket
et-and. Dclaware Avenue. +As a, ely unimpor
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FIRST GENERATION 15

This house was built of logs or clapboards ; brick was unobtainable,
and stone had not yet come into use as building material in Phila-
delphia. Fourth and Walnut was then on the very outskirts of the
village, and on the opposite side of Dock Creek from the main settle-
ment. The house was still surrounded by vacant lots when Green
sold 1t in 1692. It is doubtiul whether Thomas ever occupied this
property, altbough no record has been found either of his place of
residence or of his occupation during the period of approximately
18 months in which he is believed to have remained in the town.
Since many of the early arrivals lived in caves dug into the steep
bank of the Delaware, it is possible that one of these was Thomas'
first home in Pennsylvania. '

In 1682, very little of the land surrounding Philadelphia had yet
been acquired from its Indian owners; consequently, those early
arrivals who wished to become farmers were forced to await the
formal purchase of the land they had chosen. Thomas was unable
to obtain a warrant for the 250 acres which he had bought before he
left England until Feb. 20, 1684.* His tract lay in Pemapecka, later
called Dublin township, several miles north-east of the village of
Philadelphia, and now in the 23rd Ward of the city. It is probable
that he moved to this property at once, and that shortly afterward
he decided to patent an adjoining 250 acres for Jonathan, who was
now approaching manhood. Accordingly, the tract for which he
received his deed on Apr. 25, 1686 was for 500 acres, forming a
parallelogram 480 perches long and 167 perches wide.? The descrip-
tion of the property given in this deed shows that the survey was
made at a time when but one adjoining tract was in private owner-
ship. Since most of the land in this part of Dublin township was
patented in 1684, it is believed that Thomas was in possession of
the entire tract at that time. Possibly he was unable to make final
payment until two years later.®

3Archives, Third, Vol, I, p. 741, )

iDeed book H 10, p. 377. Dublin township was laid out by Thomas Halme, Penn's Sur-
veyor Gemeral, as a parallelogram 3 miles wide and ssveral timea that distance in length,
tke long axis running porth-west and south-east. The long sides were bounded on the
narth-east by the 3anor of Moréland and on the south-west by Oxford and Chéltenham
tawnships. The Susquehanma Rcoad was projected through the middle of the long axis,
and the tracts of land to be patented extended from the line of this road to one of' the
side lines of the township. That is. each tract was 480 perches, or 135 miles, long and as
many perches wide as was secessary to mage up the desired acreage. 7

®The statement that Thomas Livezey purchased 750 acres has been repeatedly published.
This errur prubably arose from the fact that two deeds are in existence, one for 250 acres
apd the other for 300. The larger includes and confirms the smaller.




16 THE LIVEZEY FAMILY

Although the foregoing measurements are found both in the deed
and.in the plot of the Livezey grant found on Holmes' map, the
body of land actually staked out for Thomas was 546 perches dong
and had an average width of ahout 170 perches, with an area of 575
acres. The proof of this surplus acreage is found in the following
transactions: (1) Thomas immediately transferred half of his land
to his son Jonathan, and described that half as containing 290 acres;
(2) when physical division of the tract was made in 1710, the
length was found to be 346 perches; (3) at the death of Thomas
Livezey (3-2), in 1759, his executors sold a much larger body of
land on the east side of the Pennypack than would have been possible
if the total length of the grant had been 480 perches.

The south-west boundary of the Livezey grant extends along
Cottman Street for a distance of approximately 175 rods. The
north-west boundary lies along the line of Verree Road from Cott-
man Street to a point about a quarter of a mile below the bridge over
the Pennypack. The corresponding south-east side extends from
Cottman Street along the line of Dungan Road and its extension to
a point about 70 rods beyond the Pennypack.!

After their removal 4rom Philadelphia to their plantation, Thomas
and Jonathan identified themselves with Tookany (Tacony) Meeting,
one of the two monthly meetings in the north-east section authorized
by the Philadelphia Quarterly in 6 mo. 1683. By request of its mem-
bers, the name of this mecting was changed to Oxford by the
Quarterly in 4. mo. 1685. The two Livezeys probably arrived in
time to assist in the building of the first log ﬁ’\euting house on ground
acquired from Thomas Fairman, a prommept Friend and Penn’s
Deputy Surveyor General. This spot is nQw the intersection of
Waln and Unity Streets, Frankford, and is occupied by a later meet-
ing house, built in 1776.

In 1686, -the Dublin township Friends established their own Dublin
Meeting at the home of Richard Worrell, whoge tract of 500 acres
adjoined Thomas Livezey’s land to the south-east. ‘This proved to
be a central location, and the monthly meeting of all the preparative
meetings in the north-east section of the county was held there
2 mo. 25, 1687 and regularly thereafter for some time. Thomas

Livezey was one of the delegates from this meeting to the Phlla-
uelPh:a Quarterly held 4 mo. 4, 1688.2 »

18ee also the map facmg 4his page.
_ Minutes of the Philadelphia Monthly Meeting, p. 91.

For personal use only.;
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FIRST GENERATION 17

Thomas’ will was drawn 6 mo. 12, 1691,* and was signed in a
small but firmi and regular hand. Cash legacies were left to the female
memmbers of his family : a small sum to each of his married daughters
and their children, to be paid in English money ; £10 “country money”
to his daughter-in-law Rachel; and £30 and a “great chest” to his
grand-daughter Mary, when she reached the age of 16. Jonathan
was directed to provide this cash by paying into the estate £100,
the purchase price of the 290 acres which he had bought from his
father but had not paid for. He was also given a life interest in
the remaining 250 acres, which was then to go to his oldest son
Thomas.

Thomas died 8 mo. 19, 1691 and was “Buryed in The Buirying
place in Oxford near Tacony bridge.”? This was at the Old Oxford
Meeting, Waln and Unity Streets, Frankford. Although Thomas
was a member of Dublin Meeting at the time of his death, that
meeting owned no real estate and its members were buried in £stab-
lished burial grounds belonging to other meetings. His grave is not
marked, but burials at Oxford from 1683 to 1698 are said to have
been made in a single row of graves just inside the Unity Street
fence. Thomas Livezey’s grave is No. 10 in this row, and its sup-
posed location has recently been marked with an English oak.

If one may judge by the single sample of his hand-writing that
has been preserved, Thomas had a better education than was wusial
in his time. His steadfastness under persecution shows that he
valued principle above convenience or even personal liberty. His
descendants for manv generations were usually persons of large
frame, of a taciturn disposition and a degree of individuality which
often amounted to eccentricity. It would be interesting to know how

many of these traits were inherited from their ultimate American
ancestor.

Issue by Sarah:

2-1 Ann, baptized at Runcorn Church Sept. 29, 1647; married (1) at
Frodsham Church Feb. 23, 1663-4, John Tarbocke? (2) a member of the
Littlemore family of Frodsham, While several members of this family
became Friends, Ann’s name is not found in the records of the Cheshire
Monthly Meeting. She received 40 sh. in her father's will, and each of
her three eldest children was given 20 sh. There is no evidence that the
_Littlemores emigrated to America. T o

2-2 Margaret, born probably about 1649: marrieif'rname Lorenson, a name
found in the records of St. Olave’s, Chester. She and her three eldest

T = g ) *
'For equivalent in modern reckeni_ng, consult foot-note 2, p. 18.
3Death Register of Abington Mm&ly Meeting of Fﬁl}fﬂd&,.p- L.

H * =

Register of Frodshaci Parish, Chishire,
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children were given the same share of her father's estate as Ann Little-

more and her family. The Lorensons did not emigrate to America and
probably were not Friends.

Issue by Ellen:

. : 2-3 JONATHAN, born at Norton 4 mo. 18, 1666,' married Rachel Taylor.
2-4 David, born at Norton 11 mo. 12, 1667; buried 5 mo. 27, 1669.1

Seconp GENERATION

2-3 JONATHAN LIVEZEY, older child of Thomas Livezey
(1-1)- and “his second wife Ellen, was born at Norton, Cheshire, B
England, 4 mo. 18, 1666, and died on his plantation in Dublin town-
ship, Philadelphia county, Pennsylvania 9 mo. 23, 1698.2 He married
at Chester Meeting, Chester county, Pennsylvania 12 mo. 7, 1686-7 3
Rachel Taylor, b. 11 mo. 15, 1664, daughter of Robert and Mary
(Hayes) Taylor of Springfield township, Chester (now Delaware)
county.!

Few of the details of Jonathan's short life are known. It is likely
that he and his father worked together to bring their tract of land
under cultivation during the latter’s lifetime, and that Jonathan con-
tinued the task after his father’s death. He was one of the largest
taxpayers in Dublin township when the first general levy of 1 penny
per pound was made in May, 1693, his assessment being 8sh. 4d. on
a vatuation of £100.* His will shows that when he died his place
was well stocked with all the usual varieties of animals and fowl. -

The will also states that he had *“‘erected a tenement and settled a
plantation,” giving rise to the belief that Jonathan, and not his father,

y 'Records of the Cheshire Monthly Meeting.

*Prior to 1752, the legal year in England and her colomies began with March 25th. Can-
sequently, March was the first month and Fehruary the twelfth. Between Jan. 1st and
Mar, 25th, it was customary to use a double date, &. g. 12mo. 7, 1686-7, but the second
numeral was sometimes omitted. In reading Old Style dates, when the number and not
the mame of the month is given, a1 in Quaker records, it is necessary to remsmber that
;— two must be added to the number, in order to obtain the modern equivalent, .
E In 1752, also, England discarded the Julian calendar, which ha _fallen 11 days hehind
true reckoning during the preceding 18 centuries, The day followm%aSept.‘ 2, 1752 was .
called Sept. f-i. It 13 necessary, therefore, to add 11 days to all dates prior 2o 1752,
whether expressed by the mame or the number of the month, ir order to conform to later
usage, ) ]
Jonathan Livezey was born June 29, 1666, and died Dec. 4, 1698,
®This is the date om which the “intentions™ of Jonmathap and Rachel were iven the !
second reading and_final approval by Chester- Meeting. The date of the wed ing itself ;
was not recorded. It was customary, however, when one of the contracting parties pre-
seniéd a certificate from a distant meeting, to perform the matriage cevemony immediately.
after_the adjournment of the business meeting, and it is assumed that the usual procedure
was fullawed,-in this instance. The date of the marriage was, tharefore,’ Feb, 18, 1687. | |

‘Robert and Mary Taylor bad lived in:Clatterwich, Little: Leigh, Cheshire before emi.
grating to America. Robert had been an “active Friend in E__nglamf. and his marriage to
Mary Hayes by Friends’ ceremony:bad -resulted in a summons before the same Consistory -
Court which bad fined Thomas Livezey fur his second ‘marriage. See also The Rabert
Taglor Fomily by Alfted R. Justice, = - ik T LT

*Penne, Magasine. of History and Biogrophv, Vol. VI

Balide abiia
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SECOND GENERATION 19

had built the first house on the tract. Tradition has it that this was
the brick house which is still standing some 50 rods south of Rhawn
Street between Verree Road and the Reading Railway crossing, and
that it was erected shortly after Jonathan’s marriage. Documentary
evidence carries it back only to 1760, when it appears in its present
form on a pen and ink draught of the property.!

This house, probably the oldest existing habitation of the Livezey
family in America, faces the south, overlooking the shallow valley
of Sandy Run. The main portion consists of two stories and an attic,
built of English-type brick, said to have been imported, and set on
an unusually rough and irregular foundation of field stone. In the
reat is an attached ore-story stone kitchen.

The main building originally carried a pent-roof front and back
at the second story level, and a similar pent on each end at the attic
level. At some later date these pents were taken down and a porch
was buijlt along the entire front. This also has recently fallen down.

Inside are two large rooms on each floor and an unfnished attic.
A small entryway inside the central front door leads to each first-
story room and to the second story by a narrow, winding, half-
enclosed stairway. The short balustrade of this stairway has an oak
rail and, instead of spindles, a series of thin oak panels cut in a jig-
saw pattern. This same pattern is carried out in ventilators set
above the door of a spacious closet in each of the second story rooms.

The left-hand room on the first floor was the kitchen. It contains
an unusually large fireplace, with a flue in each end. These chimneys,
with two others, one from each of the second-floor rooms, are gradu-
ally brought together as they reach the top of the house, and pierce
the roof-line in the middle of the gable as a single cluster, shaped like
a cross instead of the usual square.

If the fireplaces carried mantels, they have been removed. The
outside doors are of a later period, but the inner doors still swing
on LH hinges. The attic contains a very unusual feature: besides the
ordinary rafters, there are two sets of master rafters, each placed
one-third the length of the gable. Each of these rafters is made of
a single piece of hand-hewn oak, and measures about 6x8 inches.
When it reaches the side wall of the house, about 30 inches from the
floor, each master rafter curves abruptly downward along the wall
and sits perpendicularly upon the floor beam. One wonders how
much searching was necessary to find four sticks of timber curved
at the right place and at the right angle for these rafters.

The house is now occupied by a family of foreign extraction, - It
and the adjacent ground have been the property of the Reading

3Collsetion.of . Thomas 1. Firth (8-163).

S A i i e l‘; i
AT T M b L g B el Ll G e




e e bl S S

20 THE LIVEZEY FAMILY

Railway for about 30 years, and apparently few if any repairs have
been made to the house during that entire period. The building is
in an advanced state of dilapidation, both inside and out, and can-
not much longer endure the abuse to which it 1s being subjected.

Dublin Meeting disappeared from Friends’ records about 1690.
George Keith, the brilliant but contentious headmaster of Penn
Charter School, began his revolt against Foxian Quakerism shortly
after that date, and his campaign was particularly successful in
Dublin and adjoining townships. \While Dublin Meeting must have
been greatly weakened by defections, it is known that orthodox
Friends' meetings were held at Richard Worrell's house as late as
1702, and it seems probable that the Dublin organization was kept
infact until the completion of the new meeting house at Abington
during the same year. Thercupon many of the Dublin Friends,
among them Jonathan’s children, transferred their membership to
Abington. Jonathan was a delegate to the Philadelphia Quarterly,
apparently from Dublin, 3 mo. 31, 1697. He was buried near his
father in the original row of graves at the Old Oxford Meeting, his
being the sixteenth and last interiment in the row.

Jonathan was evidently on his death-bed when his will was drawn
and signed with his mark 8 mo. 31, 1698, just twenty-four days
before his death. The will is a long and carefully-drawn document,
designed to provide for every contingency. The order in which his
sons should inherit his landed estate was set forth in detail, and pro-
vision was -made that if bath his elder sons survived, Thomas was
to have the south-east half of the property, on which the house had
been built. Thomas, however, had already inherited the other half
direct from his grandfather, so it became necessary to stipulate
that he must deed this to Jonathan before he could come into posses-
sion of the house and the land on which it stood. This transfer was
made in 1710, twelve years afterwards?

The will also expressed the wish that Rachel remain a widow until
one of the sons reached his majority. The establishment was to be
kept intact in the interim and three friends were appointed trustees
of the estate. When the oldest surviving son became of age, he was
to take possession of the house and the adjoining 290 acres and also
a negro man and his wife.* The increase of this couple and the other
persona! property was to be divided with the other surviving brothers,
and the sisters were to be paid a cash legacy stipulated in the will,

Mezd buok H 10, p. 377,

%Hoth negra alau.esl and indentured white servants were cominon smonig the carly Qeaken
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_FOURTH GENERATION 55

b. c. 1725, d. 12 mo. 14, 1798, son of Abram and Amelia (L{vering)
Shioeimaker of Bristol township.? "
George Shoemaker was a farmer hving in Cheltenham township.
Issue:? ‘
§-86 Esther, born 1 mo. 15, 1755 ; died 6 mo. 19, 1814; married Jacob Paul.
$-87 Sarah, born 12 mo. 19, 1756; died 11 mo. 28, 1783; single.
5-88 Jonathan, born 4 mo. 20, 1759 ; died 6 mo. 18, 1798 single.
589 George, born 5 mo. 4, 1762; died 1 mo. 16, 1806; married 11 mo. 26,

1801 Sarah Bird, daughter of Albrick and Sarah (Tyson) Bird; no
issue. :

590 Martha, born 4 mo. 2, 1767 ; died 5 me. 14, 1791; single. »
591 1Isaac, born 12 mo. 2, 1771; died 2 mo. 12, 1855; married § mo. 17, 1803
~ Sarah Jenkins, daughter of John and Elizabeth Jenkins of Abington. .
592 Tacy, born 6 mo. 24, 1774; died 12 mo. 14, 1801; married at Abington

Meeting 11 mo. 17, 1796 Richard Roberts, son of Thomas and Letitia
Roberts of Richland, Bucks county:

4-21 NATHAN LIVEZEY, eighth child of Jonathan Livezey
(3-3) and Esther Eastburn, was born in Lower Dublin township
4 mo. 11, 1739 and died there 6 mo. 8, 1823. He married at Abington
Meeting 4 mo. 21, 1763 Hannah Williams, b. 10 mo. 20, 1738, d. 9
mo. 7, 1814, daughter of Anthony and Sarah (Shoemaker) Williams
of Bristol township.?

Immediately after Nathan's marriage, his father gave him the
family homestead and 25 acres surrounding it, reserving two rooms
in the heuse for the use of his wife and himself during their life-
time.* Esther lived to occupy these premises for almost 30 years.
In the settlement of Jonathan’s estate in 1765, Nathan received an
additional 6714 acres adjoining his original tract.® These two parcels
were bounded on the south-east for a distance of 59 rods by the line

‘Abram (or Abraham) Shoemaker was a son of George Shoemaker by his first wife
Sarah Wall, a brother of Isaac Shoemaker (see 4-12) and a balf-brother of Mary (Shoe-
maker) Livezey (4-37), . :

2Far later genesations eee The Shoemaker Family of Cheltenham. .

®flannah was one of 18 children born in as many years, Her mother was a daughter el
George :Shoemaker (see also page 49) and his second wife Christiana Brown, and a sister ef
Mary Shogmaker, wife of Thomas Livezey (4.37), . .

Her father was a:son of John and Eleanor (Klincken) Williams and a grandson of Will:
fiam Jobn and his wife Ann (Reynolds) who emigrated from Merionetshire, Wales and
settled on the Welsh Tract. near Merion, Pa.. John ‘Williams was_borp in Wales about
1671, masried Eleanor Klincken at Germantown Meeting 6 mo. 3, 1696, and in-1716
ity | Chelténham_ township, ‘where be bought the” facm. of 230 acres which .passed to
his_gon Anthony. : ) 2
““Eleanor (or Ellen) Klincken was born in Uttenkirk, Germany in 1670, the daughter of
Arent and Niske (perhaps Jansen) Klincken, who emigrated from Dalem, Holland in 1687

~ and located in Germantown. : - e . oo

‘Hannah's father brought the name Anthony inmto this branch of the Livezey family; it
was common amone Nathan Livezev's descendants for several génerations. The shange :
name from William John to Jobn Williams is best explained by the statement that family
nanies were not common among the ‘Welsh when' they first camie:to Fenniylvania; shildsen
took their fatber's given name as their last name, In the next generation the English
system ‘of family. nimies was adopted, and_accounts for: the numerous unrelated families of

Roherts: Thomas, Jones and. cthera: found .in the. early, history, of this section. .
&Deed book GS 27, p. 12, ‘
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